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12 17 CFR 200.30–3(a)(12). 
1 The term ‘‘Fund’’ refers to any registered 

investment company, including any registered unit 

change is consistent with the Act. 
Comments may be submitted by any of 
the following methods: 

Electronic Comments 

• Use the Commission’s Internet 
comment form (http://www.sec.gov/
rules/sro.shtml); or 

• Send an email to rule-comments@
sec.gov. Please include File Number SR– 
NYSEArca–2015–53 on the subject line. 

Paper Comments 

• Send paper comments in triplicate 
to Brent J. Fields, Secretary, Securities 
and Exchange Commission, 100 F Street 
NE., Washington, DC 20549–1090. 

All submissions should refer to File 
Number SR–NYSEArca–2015–53. This 
file number should be included on the 
subject line if email is used. To help the 
Commission process and review your 
comments more efficiently, please use 
only one method. The Commission will 
post all comments on the Commission’s 
Internet Web site (http://www.sec.gov/
rules/sro.shtml). Copies of the 
submission, all subsequent 
amendments, all written statements 
with respect to the proposed rule 
change that are filed with the 
Commission, and all written 
communications relating to the 
proposed rule change between the 
Commission and any person, other than 
those that may be withheld from the 
public in accordance with the 
provisions of 5 U.S.C. 552, will be 
available for Web site viewing and 
printing in the Commission’s Public 
Reference Room, 100 F Street NE., 
Washington, DC 20549 on official 
business days between the hours of 
10:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. Copies of such 
filing also will be available for 
inspection and copying at the principal 
offices of the Exchange. All comments 
received will be posted without change; 
the Commission does not edit personal 
identifying information from 
submissions. You should submit only 
information that you wish to make 
available publicly. All submissions 
should refer to File Number SR– 
NYSEArca–2015–53, and should be 
submitted on or before July 30, 2015. 

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated 
authority.12 

Robert W. Errett, 
Deputy Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2015–16730 Filed 7–8–15; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8011–01–P 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 

[Release No. IC–31704; File No. 812–14460] 

Macquarie Capital (USA) Inc., et al.; 
Notice of Application and Temporary 
Order 

July 6, 2015. 
AGENCY: Securities and Exchange 
Commission (‘‘Commission’’). 
ACTION: Temporary order and notice of 
application for a permanent order under 
section 9(c) of the Investment Company 
Act of 1940 (‘‘Act’’). 

SUMMARY OF APPLICATION: Applicants 
have received a temporary order 
(‘‘Temporary Order’’) exempting them 
from section 9(a) of the Act, with 
respect to an injunction entered against 
Macquarie Capital (USA) Inc. 
(‘‘Macquarie Capital’’) on April 1, 2015 
by the United States District Court for 
the Southern District of New York 
(‘‘District Court’’), until the Commission 
takes final action on an application for 
a permanent order (the ‘‘Permanent 
Order,’’ and with the Temporary Order, 
the ‘‘Orders’’). Applicants also have 
applied for a Permanent Order. 
APPLICANTS: Macquarie Capital, 
Delaware Management Business Trust 
(‘‘DMBT’’), on behalf of its series, 
Delaware Management Company 
(‘‘DMC’’) and Delaware Investments 
Fund Advisers (‘‘DIFA’’), Four Corners 
Capital Management, LLC (‘‘FCCM’’), 
Macquarie Capital Investment 
Management LLC (‘‘MCIM’’), Macquarie 
Funds Management Hong Kong Limited 
(‘‘MFMHK’’), and Delaware Distributors, 
L.P. (‘‘Delaware Distributors’’) 
(collectively, the ‘‘Applicants’’). 
FILING DATES: The application was filed 
on May 15, 2015 and amended on June 
10, 2015. 
HEARING OR NOTIFICATION OF HEARING: An 
order granting the application will be 
issued unless the Commission orders a 
hearing. Interested persons may request 
a hearing by writing to the 
Commission’s Secretary and serving 
Applicants with a copy of the request, 
personally or by mail. Hearing requests 
should be received by the Commission 
by 5:30 p.m. on July 31, 2015, and 
should be accompanied by proof of 
service on Applicants, in the form of an 
affidavit, or for lawyers, a certificate of 
service. Pursuant to rule 0–5 under the 
Act, hearing requests should state the 
nature of the writer’s interest, any facts 
bearing upon the desirability of a 
hearing on the matter, the reason for the 
request, and the issues contested. 
Persons who wish to be notified of a 

hearing may request notification by 
writing to the Commission’s Secretary. 
ADDRESSES: Secretary, U.S. Securities 
and Exchange Commission, 100 F Street 
NE., Washington, DC 20549–1090; 
Applicants: Macquarie Capital and 
MCIM: 125 West 55th Street, 22nd 
Floor, New York, NY 10019, DMBT, 
FCCM and Delaware Distributors: 2005 
Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103, 
and MFMHK: One International Finance 
Center, 1 Harbour View Street, Central, 
Hong Kong SAR. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Robert H. Shapiro, Senior Counsel, at 
(202) 551–7758, or Mary Kay Frech, 
Branch Chief, at (202) 551–6821 
(Division of Investment Management, 
Chief Counsel’s Office). 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
following is a temporary order and a 
summary of the application. The 
complete application may be obtained 
via the Commission’s Web site by 
searching for the file number, or an 
applicant using the Company name box, 
at http://www.sec.gov/search/
search.htm, or by calling (202) 551– 
8090. 

Applicants’ Representations 
1. Macquarie Capital, a Delaware 

corporation, is an indirect, wholly- 
owned subsidiary of Macquarie Group 
Limited (‘‘MGL’’) and a broker-dealer 
registered under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (the ‘‘Exchange 
Act’’). MCIM, a Delaware limited 
liability company, is an indirect, 
wholly-owned subsidiary of MGL and 
an investment adviser registered under 
the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 
(the ‘‘Advisers Act’’). DMC and DIFA 
are series of DMBT, which is a Delaware 
statutory trust and an indirect, wholly- 
owned subsidiary of MGL. DMBT is an 
investment adviser registered under the 
Advisers Act. FCCM, a Delaware limited 
liability company, is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of a series of DMBT and an 
investment adviser registered under the 
Advisers Act. Delaware Distributors, a 
Delaware limited partnership, is an 
indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of 
MGL and a broker-dealer registered 
under the Exchange Act. MFMHK is an 
indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of 
MGL and an investment adviser 
registered under the Advisers Act. DMC 
and DIFA, as series of DMBT, MCIM, 
FCCM, and MFMHK (collectively, the 
‘‘Adviser Applicants’’) each serve as 
investment adviser or investment sub- 
adviser to investment companies 
registered under the Act, or series of 
such companies (each, a ‘‘Fund’’) 1 and 
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investment trust (‘‘UIT’’) or registered face amount 
certificate company (‘‘FACC’’), as well as any 
business development company and employees’ 
securities company. 

2 Macquarie Capital is a party to the application, 
but does not and will not engage in Fund Services 
Activities, and is not a Covered Person. 

3 The Commission also charged former Macquarie 
Capital managing director Aaron Black and former 
Macquarie Capital investment banker William Fang 
for failing to exercise appropriate care in their due 
diligence review. Black and Fang each consented to 
the entry of court orders containing the same 
injunctions as the Court Order (as defined below). 

4 Securities and Exchange Commission v. 
Macquarie Capital (USA) Inc., et al., Civil Action 
No. 15–CV–02304 (S.D.N.Y. April 1, 2015) (Final 
Judgment as to Defendant Macquarie Capital (USA) 
Inc.). 

5 The alleged conduct giving rise to the Injunction 
is referred to herein as the ‘‘Conduct.’’ 

Delaware Distributors provides 
principal underwriting services to 
certain Funds. The Adviser Applicants 
and Delaware Distributers are 
collectively referred to as the ‘‘Fund 
Servicing Applicants.’’ 

2. While no existing company of 
which Macquarie Capital is an affiliated 
person within the meaning of section 
2(a)(3) of the Act (‘‘Affiliated Person’’), 
other than the Fund Servicing 
Applicants, currently serves as an 
investment adviser or depositor of any 
Fund or principal underwriter (as 
defined in section 2(a)(29) of the Act) 
for any open-end registered investment 
company (‘‘Open-End Fund’’), 
registered UIT, or registered FACC (such 
activities, ‘‘Fund Services Activities’’), 
Applicants request that any relief 
granted also apply to any existing 
company of which Macquarie Capital is 
an Affiliated Person and to any other 
company of which Macquarie Capital 
may become an Affiliated Person in the 
future (together with the Fund Servicing 
Applicants, the ‘‘Covered Persons’’) 2 
with respect to any activity 
contemplated by section 9(a) of the Act. 

3. On March 27, 2015, the 
Commission filed a complaint (the 
‘‘Complaint’’) in the District Court. 
According to the Complaint, Macquarie 
Capital was the lead underwriter on a 
2010 secondary public stock offering by 
Puda Coal, Inc. (‘‘Puda Coal’’), which 
traded on the New York Stock Exchange 
at the time and purportedly owned a 
coal company in the People’s Republic 
of China. According to the Complaint, 
in the offering documents, Puda Coal 
falsely claimed that it held a 90-percent 
ownership interest in the Chinese coal 
company. According to the Complaint, 
Macquarie Capital repeated those 
statements in its marketing materials for 
the offering despite obtaining a report 
showing that Puda Coal did not possess 
an ownership interest in the coal 
company. The Complaint alleges that 
two former Macquarie Capital 
employees were negligent by failing to 
act on due diligence information about 
the true ownership interest in the 
Chinese coal company and instead 
moving forward with the offering.3 The 

Complaint alleges that Macquarie 
Capital was negligent as an organization 
by underwriting and marketing the 
offering while in possession of this 
information. 

4. On April 1, 2015, the District Court 
entered an order (the ‘‘Court Order’’) 
enjoining Macquarie Capital from 
violating sections 17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) 
of the Securities Act of 1933 (the 
‘‘Injunction’’).4 The Court Order also 
requires Macquarie Capital to pay $12 
million in disgorgement and 
prejudgment interest and a civil 
monetary penalty in the amount of $3 
million. Macquarie Capital consented to 
the entry of the Court Order without 
admitting or denying the allegations in 
the Complaint (other than those relating 
to the jurisdiction of the District Court 
and the jurisdiction of the Commission 
over the Conduct 5). 

5. Applicants represent that escrow 
accounts have been established into 
which have been or will be deposited 
amounts equal to the advisory fees paid 
by the Funds to the Adviser Applicants 
for the period from April 1, 2015 
through May 15, 2015. 

Applicants’ Legal Analysis 
1. Section 9(a)(2) of the Act, in 

relevant part, prohibits a person who 
has been enjoined from engaging in or 
continuing any conduct or practice in 
connection with the purchase or sale of 
a security, or in connection with 
activities as an underwriter, broker or 
dealer, from acting, among other things, 
as an investment adviser or depositor of 
any registered investment company or a 
principal underwriter for any Open-End 
Fund, UIT or FACC. Section 9(a)(3) of 
the Act makes the prohibition in section 
9(a)(2) applicable to a company, any 
affiliated person of which has been 
disqualified under the provisions of 
section 9(a)(2). Section 2(a)(3) of the Act 
defines ‘‘affiliated person’’ to include, 
among others, any person directly or 
indirectly controlling, controlled by, or 
under common control with, the other 
person. Applicants state that, taken 
together, sections 9(a)(2) and 9(a)(3) 
have the effect of precluding the Fund 
Servicing Applicants and Covered 
Persons from engaging in Fund Services 
Activities as a result of the Injunction 
entered against Macquarie Capital 
because Macquarie Capital is an 
Affiliated Person of each Fund Servicing 
Applicant and Covered Person. 

2. Section 9(c) of the Act provides 
that, upon application, the Commission 
shall by order grant an exemption from 
the disqualification provisions of 
section 9(a) of the Act, either 
unconditionally or on an appropriate 
temporary or other conditional basis, to 
any person if that person establishes 
that: (a) The prohibitions of section 9(a), 
as applied to the person, are unduly or 
disproportionately severe or (b) the 
conduct of the person has been such as 
not to make it against the public interest 
or the protection of investors to grant 
the exemption. Applicants have filed an 
application pursuant to section 9(c) 
seeking a Temporary Order and a 
Permanent Order exempting the Fund 
Servicing Applicants and other Covered 
Persons from the disqualification 
provisions of section 9(a) of the Act. The 
Fund Servicing Applicants and other 
Covered Persons may, if the relief is 
granted, in the future act in any of the 
capacities contemplated by section 9(a) 
of the Act subject to the applicable 
terms and conditions of the Orders. On 
May 15, 2015, Applicants received a 
temporary conditional order from the 
Commission exempting the Covered 
Persons from section 9(a) of the Act 
with respect to the Injunction from May 
15, 2015 until the Commission takes 
final action on an application for a 
Permanent Order or, if earlier, July 14, 
2015. 

3. Applicants believe they meet the 
standards for exemption specified in 
section 9(c). Applicants state that the 
prohibitions of section 9(a) as applied to 
them would be unduly and 
disproportionately severe and that the 
conduct of Applicants has not been 
such as to make it against the public 
interest or the protection of investors to 
grant the exemption from section 9(a). 

4. Applicants state that the alleged 
Conduct giving rise to the Injunction 
did not in any way involve any of the 
Fund Servicing Applicants acting in 
their capacity as investment adviser, 
sub-adviser or principal underwriter for 
the Funds. Applicants also state that the 
Conduct did not involve any Fund or 
Fund assets with respect to which Fund 
Servicing Applicants engaged in Fund 
Services Activities. In addition, 
Applicants state that none of the Funds 
to which Fund Servicing Applicants 
provide Fund Services Activities 
purchased, held, or hold securities 
issued in the 2010 Puda Coal stock 
offering. 

5. Applicants state that: (i) None of 
the current or former directors, officers 
or employees of the Fund Servicing 
Applicants had any involvement in the 
Conduct and (ii) the personnel who 
were involved in the Conduct have had 

VerDate Sep<11>2014 17:10 Jul 08, 2015 Jkt 235001 PO 00000 Frm 00069 Fmt 4703 Sfmt 4703 E:\FR\FM\09JYN1.SGM 09JYN1sr
ob

in
so

n 
on

 D
S

K
5S

P
T

V
N

1P
R

O
D

 w
ith

 N
O

T
IC

E
S



39476 Federal Register / Vol. 80, No. 131 / Thursday, July 9, 2015 / Notices 

no, and will not have any, involvement 
in providing Fund Services Activities 
and will not serve as an officer, director, 
or employee of any Covered Person 
providing Fund Services Activities. 
Applicants assert that because the 
personnel of the Fund Servicing 
Applicants did not have any 
involvement in the Conduct, 
shareholders of Funds that received 
investment advisory, depository and 
principal underwriting services from the 
Fund Servicing Applicants were not 
affected any differently than if those 
Funds had received services from any 
other non-affiliated investment adviser, 
depositor or principal underwriter. 

6. Applicants submit that section 9(a) 
should not operate to bar them from 
serving the Funds and their 
shareholders in the absence of improper 
practices relating to their Fund Services 
Activities. Applicants state that the 
section 9(a) disqualification could result 
in substantial costs to the Funds to 
which the Fund Servicing Applicants 
provide investment advisory services, 
and such Funds’ operations would be 
disrupted, as they sought to engage new 
advisers or sub-advisers. Applicants 
assert that these effects would be 
unduly severe given the Fund Servicing 
Applicants’ lack of involvement in the 
Conduct. Moreover, Applicants state 
that Macquarie Capital has taken 
remedial actions to address the 
Conduct, including reviewing its due 
diligence policies and procedures with 
the assistance of a number of different 
outside law firms, as outlined in the 
application. Thus, Applicants believe 
that granting the exemption from 
section 9(a), as requested, would be 
consistent with the public interest and 
the protection of investors. 

7. Applicants state that the inability of 
the Fund Servicing Applicants to 
continue to provide investment advisory 
services to Funds would result in those 
Funds and their shareholders facing 
unduly and disproportionately severe 
hardships. Applicants assert that 
imposing the section 9(a) 
disqualifications upon the Adviser 
Applicants would deprive the 
shareholders of certain Funds of the 
advisory or sub-advisory services that 
they expected to receive when they 
decided to invest in the Funds. 
Applicants state that many shareholders 
have long-standing investments and 
relationships with the Funds. 
Applicants represent that each Adviser 
Applicant has developed a familiarity 
and expertise with a particular Fund’s 
operations, and that replacing the 
Adviser Applicants with another 
adviser would result in inefficiencies 
and potential investment losses during 

a transition period. Applicants assert 
that disqualification from providing 
these services would disrupt investment 
strategies and could potentially result in 
large net redemptions of shares of the 
Funds, which in turn could both 
frustrate efforts to effectively manage 
the Funds’ assets and increase the 
Funds’ expense ratios to the detriment 
of non-redeeming shareholders. 
Applicants also note that any effort to 
find suitable replacement investment 
advisers and/or sub-advisers would 
necessarily take time, during which the 
Funds would lack advisory services, 
and that the cost to the Funds of 
obtaining shareholder approval for the 
new investment advisory or sub- 
advisory services would be substantial. 
Applicants further assert that the 
disqualification of Delaware Distributors 
would cause the Funds to expend time 
and resources to find and engage 
substitute principal underwriters, and 
that the substitute underwriters would 
not be able to replicate the selling 
network established by Delaware 
Distributors. 

8. Applicants also represent that the 
boards of directors or trustees (the 
‘‘Boards’’) of those Funds for which a 
Fund Servicing Applicant serves as the 
primary adviser or principal 
underwriter have been apprised of the 
consequences to the relevant Fund 
Servicing Applicants as a result of the 
issuance of the Injunction, and that such 
Boards have requested that the relevant 
Fund Servicing Applicants continue to 
provide services to their Funds. 
Applicants further state that for those 
Funds for which a Fund Servicing 
Applicant serves as a sub-adviser, 
Applicants have provided the primary 
investment advisers with written 
materials describing the Conduct, the 
Injunction, the disqualification under 
section 9(a) of the Act, and the process 
for obtaining exemptive relief under 
section 9(c) of the Act, and that none of 
the sub-advised Funds or their primary 
advisers has requested that the Fund 
Servicing Applicants cease providing 
sub-advisory services. 

9. Applicants state that, once a 
Permanent Order is issued, the Fund 
Servicing Applicants will, as soon as 
reasonably practicable, distribute 
additional written materials with 
updated information to the Boards of 
the Funds. The written materials will 
include an offer to meet in person with 
the Boards, including the directors who 
are not ‘‘interested persons’’ of such 
Funds as defined in section 2(a)(19) of 
the Act and their independent legal 
counsel as defined in rule 0–1(a)(6) 
under the Act. 

10. Applicants represent that they 
have undertaken to develop procedures 
reasonably designed to prevent 
violations of section 9(a) by Fund 
Servicing Applicants and their affiliated 
persons. Applicants state that as part of 
this process their legal and compliance 
groups have issued a firm-wide 
communication establishing a 
procedure whereby the legal and 
compliance personnel in each of MGL’s 
business groups globally must identify 
and escalate potential cross-divisional 
and cross-jurisdictional impacts from a 
regulatory enforcement matter or 
litigation, including disqualifying 
events under applicable securities laws 
and regulations, to central legal and 
compliance management, which will 
further assess the event to determine, 
among other things, whether there exists 
any disqualification events under 
federal securities laws. 

11. Applicants represent that they 
will engage an independent consultant 
(‘‘Independent Consultant’’) to review 
and test the existing procedures relating 
to compliance with section 9(a) and to 
recommend appropriate enhancements 
to ensure that the procedures are 
reasonably designed to prevent 
violations of section 9(a) by Covered 
Persons. Applicants state that, as part of 
this process, the Independent 
Consultant specifically will consider 
enhancements to the procedures to 
provide for the escalation of information 
regarding potential disqualifying events 
under section 9(a) so that the 
information may be appropriately 
analyzed in a timely manner. 
Applicants further represent that, based 
on the recommendations of the 
Independent Consultant, Applicants 
will implement, within 60 days of the 
date of the Permanent Order, 
enhancements to the procedures that are 
reasonably designed to prevent 
violations of section 9(a) by Covered 
Persons. Applicants state that, in the 
case of Covered Persons that are 
registered investment advisers, such 
procedures will be part of their written 
policies and procedures adopted and 
implemented pursuant to rule 206(4)–7 
under the Advisers Act. In addition, 
Applicants state that, in the case of 
Delaware Distributors or any other 
Covered Person that serves as a 
principal underwriter to a registered 
investment company in the future, such 
procedures will be part of their Written 
Supervisory Procedures. Applicants 
represent that the Board of each Fund 
that has a Covered Person as its primary 
investment adviser and/or principal 
underwriter also will review the 
adequacy of these procedures and the 
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effectiveness of their implementation at 
or before the next annual review of the 
policies and procedures of the relevant 
primary investment adviser and/or 
principal underwriter in accordance 
with rule 38a–1 under the Act. 
Applicants further represent that, for 
each sub-advised Fund, the Fund 
Servicing Applicants will transmit such 
procedures to each Fund’s primary 
investment adviser for consideration by 
the relevant Board in accordance with 
rule 38a–1 under the Act. 

12. Applicants state that if the Fund 
Servicing Applicants were barred under 
section 9(a) of the Act from providing 
investment advisory services to the 
Funds, and were unable to obtain the 
requested exemption, the effect on their 
businesses and employees would be 
unduly and disproportionately severe 
because they have committed 
substantial capital and other resources 
to establishing an expertise in advising 
Funds. Applicants further state that 
prohibiting the Fund Servicing 
Applicants from engaging in Fund 
Services Activities would not only 
adversely affect their businesses, but 
would also adversely affect their 
employees who are involved in those 
activities. Applicants state that many of 
these employees working for the Fund 
Servicing Applicants could experience 
significant difficulties and/or delays in 
finding alternative fund-related 
employment. 

13. Applicants state that none of the 
Applicants has previously applied for 
an exemptive order under section 9(c) of 
the Act. 

Applicants’ Conditions 
Applicants agree that any order 

granted by the Commission pursuant to 
the application will be subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. As a condition to the Temporary 
Order, Applicants will continue to hold 
in escrow amounts equal to all advisory 
fees paid by the Funds to the Adviser 
Applicants for the period from April 1, 
2015 through May 15, 2015. Amounts 
paid into the escrow accounts will be 
disbursed to the relevant Funds and/or 
Adviser Applicants after the 
Commission has acted on the 
application for a Permanent Order and 
discussions with the relevant Funds. 

2. Any temporary exemption granted 
pursuant to the application shall be 
without prejudice to, and shall not limit 
the Commission’s rights in any manner 
with respect to, any Commission 
investigation of, or administrative 
proceedings involving or against, 
Covered Persons, including without 
limitation, the consideration by the 
Commission of a permanent exemption 

from section 9(a) of the Act requested 
pursuant to the application or the 
revocation or removal of any temporary 
exemptions granted under the Act in 
connection with the application. 

3. Each Applicant and Covered Person 
will adopt and implement policies and 
procedures reasonably designed to 
ensure that it will comply with any 
terms and conditions of the Orders 
within 60 days of the date of the 
Permanent Order. 

4. Macquarie Capital will comply 
with the Court Order. 

5. Applicants will provide written 
notification to the Chief Counsel of the 
Commission’s Division of Investment 
Management with a copy to the Chief 
Counsel of the Commission’s Division of 
Enforcement of a material violation of 
the terms and conditions of the Orders 
or Court Order within 30 days of 
discovery of the material violation. 

Temporary Order 

The Commission has considered the 
matter and finds that Applicants have 
made the necessary showing to justify 
granting a temporary exemption. 

Accordingly, 
It is hereby ordered, pursuant to 

section 9(c) of the Act, that the Fund 
Servicing Applicants and any other 
Covered Persons are granted a 
temporary exemption from the 
provisions of section 9(a) effective 
forthwith, solely with respect to the 
Injunction, subject to the 
representations and conditions in the 
application, until the date the 
Commission takes final action on their 
application for a Permanent Order. 

By the Commission. 
Brent J. Fields, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2015–16812 Filed 7–8–15; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8011–01–P 

SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 

[Disaster Declaration #14336 and #14337] 

Texas Disaster Number TX–00448 

AGENCY: U.S. Small Business 
Administration. 
ACTION: Amendment 3. 

SUMMARY: This is an amendment of the 
Presidential declaration of a major 
disaster for Public Assistance Only for 
the State of Texas (FEMA–4223–DR), 
dated 05/29/2015. 

Incident: Severe Storms, Tornadoes, 
Straight Line Winds and Flooding. 

Incident Period: 05/04/2015 through 
06/19/2015 
DATES: Effective Date: 07/01/2015. 

Physical Loan Application Deadline 
Date: 07/28/2015. 

Economic Injury (EIDL) Loan 
Application Deadline Date: 02/29/2016. 
ADDRESSES: Submit completed loan 
applications to: U.S. Small Business 
Administration, Processing and 
Disbursement Center, 14925 Kingsport 
Road, Fort Worth, TX 76155. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: A. 
Escobar, Office of Disaster Assistance, 
U.S. Small Business Administration, 
409 3rd Street SW., Suite 6050, 
Washington, DC 20416. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The notice 
of the President’s major disaster 
declaration for Private Non-Profit 
organizations in the State of TEXAS, 
dated 05/29/2015, is hereby amended to 
include the following areas as adversely 
affected by the disaster. 
Primary Counties: Callahan, Dallas, 

Dickens, Eastland, Edwards, Frio, 
Hartley, Hidalgo, Hill, Leon, Nueces, 
Parker, Real, Trinity, Victoria 
All other information in the original 

declaration remains unchanged. 
(Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
Numbers 59002 and 59008) 

James E. Rivera, 
Associate Administrator for Disaster 
Assistance. 
[FR Doc. 2015–16818 Filed 7–8–15; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8025–01–P 

SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 

[Disaster Declaration #14361 and #14362] 

Arkansas Disaster #AR–00077 

AGENCY: U.S. Small Business 
Administration. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: This is a Notice of the 
Presidential declaration of a major 
disaster for the State of Arkansas 
(FEMA–4226–DR), dated 06/26/2015. 

Incident: Severe Storms, Tornadoes, 
Straight-line Winds, and Flooding. 

Incident Period: 05/07/2015 through 
06/15/2015. 

Effective Date: 06/26/2015. 
Physical Loan Application Deadline 

Date: 08/25/2015. 
Economic Injury (EIDL) Loan 

Application Deadline Date: 03/28/2016. 
ADDRESSES: Submit completed loan 
applications to: U.S. Small Business 
Administration, Processing and 
Disbursement Center, 14925 Kingsport 
Road, Fort Worth, TX 76155. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: A. 
Escobar, Office of Disaster Assistance, 
U.S. Small Business Administration, 
409 3rd Street SW., Suite 6050, 
Washington, DC 20416. 
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